
 

100 W 4th Ave            P.O. Box 129       Phone: 620-879-2772               www.caneyks.com 

 

                                                   AGENDA 

    

      CITY OF CANEY 

         100 W. 4TH AVE 

 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

  

ENTER THROUGH DOORS ON EAST END (Main Street Side) OF BUILDING     

 

DATE: September 22, 2025 

TIME: 6:30 P.M. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER     MAYOR ELLIOT   

    

B. ROLL CALL      CITY CLERK 

 

Josh Elliot Mayor 

Jeff Culver Council, Ward 1 

Mike Holman Council, Ward 1 

Nathan Rains Council, Ward 2 

Kenith Butts Council, Ward 2 

Lori Patterson Council, Ward 3 

Elizabeth Burch Council, Ward 3 

Becky Dye Council, Ward 4 

Travis White Council, Ward 4 
 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 

 

D.  CITIZEN PRESENTATION/VISITOR COMMENTS 

 

The City Council is always pleased to have citizens attend its meetings and welcomes comments 

during the Citizens/Visitor comments section of the meeting; however pursuant to the Kansas 

Open Meetings Act, Council cannot deliberate or vote on issues not posted on the agenda. If it is 

not posted, no deliberation between Council members may occur; Council may only respond with 

specific information or recite existing policy. For citizens wishing to speak on a non-public 

hearing item, they may either address the Council during the Citizen comments portion of the 

meeting or when the item is considered by the City Council. If you wish to address the Council, 

speakers are requested to fill out a “Request for Communication with City Council” and present it 

to the City Clerk, prior to presiding officer calling the meeting to order. Comments will be limited 

to three (3) minutes per speaker and six (6) minutes for those with a translator. 

 

E. REMOVAL OF ITEM(S) FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 

 

F.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEM(S) 

  

Consent items are deemed to need little Council deliberation or have already been deliberated at a 

previous meeting and will be acted upon as one business item. Any member of the City Council 

may request that an item be withdrawn from the Consent Agenda and placed before the City 

Council for full discussion.  

 

F.1 Approval of the Minutes for the September 15th, 2025 Meeting.  

 

F.2 Approval of Expense (September 5th to September 22nd, 2025): 



   

RH Services and Consulting $5,600 

Waste Connections of Oklahoma $20,694.73 

AWG #2290819 $15,561.46 

AWG #2294775 $18,346.35 

  

 

F.2 Main Street Auto Expenses: 

 

Invoice #009409 $188.02 

Invoice #2294775 $258.37 

 

 

F.3 Personnel Expenses: 

 

Approval of Payroll (September 11, 2025) $55,538.50 

KPERS $10,319.78 

 

MOTION:     SECOND: 

 

G. OLD BUSINESS 

 

G.1 Update:  Discussion and Approval of Zoning Committee – Update from Lori Patterson  
 

H. NEW BUSINESS 

 

H.1 Discuss and consider approval of adding the City Clerk, Adam Lanter to the City’s bank 

accounts and giving him access to these accounts. 

 

     MOTION:      SECOND: 

 

H.2 Discuss and consider proceeding with the condemnation process for the property located at 

203 North State St. and authorize City staff to solicit bids for demolition of the structure. 

 

     MOTION:     SECOND: 

  

H.3 Discuss and consider accepting the resignation of Council Member Nathan Reins 

representing Ward 2. 

 

     MOTION:     SECOND: 

 

H.4 Discuss and consider approval of an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinance of the City 

of Caney, Kansas, adding Article 6, sections 1-10 to chapter 5, dealing with towing and towing 

companies. 

 

     MOTION:        SECOND:  

 

H.5 Executive Session To discuss confidential information relating to personnel matters of    

personnel, according to K.S.A. 75-4319 (1) for 20 minutes to include the City Council, Mayor, 

City Administrator, City Clerk, Police Chief, Deputy Clerk, Utility Clerk, and Mayor. 

 

   MOTION:     SECOND: 

                        

I. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

Mayor – Josh Elliot: 

Police Chief – Ike Dye: 

City Administrator- Andrea Sibley: 



1. Water project funding update 

2. ERP training from Tyler rep. 

City Clerk – Adam Lanter: 

1. Business Licenses update 

2. ERP training from Tyler rep. 

Deputy City Clerk – Tyler Goza 

1. ERP training with Tyler rep. 

 Utility Clerk - Jalissa Jones:  

1. Water bill update 

2. ERP training from Tyler rep. 

  

J. COUNCIL COMMENT 

 Council Member - Burch: 

 Council Member - Patterson:  

 Council Member – Butts:  

 Council Member – Culver:  

Council Member – Holeman:  

Council Member – Dye:  

Council Member – White:  

Council Member – Rains:  

 

K. INFORMATION ITEMS 

   

 

L.       ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION:     SECOND:  

 

 

  

  

 



CITY OF CANEY 
CITY COUNCIL  

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 15, 2025 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Elliot called the special City Council meeting to order at 6:30pm on Monday, 
September 15, 2025 in the Council Chambers at City Hall located at 100 4th Street. 

2. ROLL CALL 

Present:  

 

 

 

Staff: 

 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Attendees recited the pledge of allegiance. 

4. INVOCATION 

Council Member White led the invocation. 

5. A. PUBLIC HEARING TO EXCEED THE REVENUE NEUTRAL RATE (RNR) FOR FY 
2026 

1. Mayor Elliot opened a public hearing regarding the City’s intent to exceed 
the RNR for FY 2026. A citizen voiced that he had not yet had the chance 
to read it but noted that the City was asking for 10 MILs. Mayor Eliot 
offered to break it down for him. The difference per year for residential is 
$109.25, which broke down per month $9.10. Commercial will be a 
difference of $237.75, per month $19.81. The 10 MILs is $120,000. He 
mentions all the other taxing entities: the County and the colleges and 
questioned where it ends. He believed 10 MILs to be high and encouraged 
the City Council members to work on the citizens’ behalf.  
Another citizen voiced concern about the proposed increase and 
encouraged the Council to look at cutting services that aren’t as  

Josh Elliot Mayor 
Mike Holeman Council, Ward 1 
Kenith Butts Council, Ward 2 
Elizabeth Burch Council, Ward 3 
Becky Dye Council, Ward 4 
Travis White Council, Ward 4 

Andrea Sibley City Manager 
Adam Lanter City Clerk 
Ike Dye Police Chief 
Jalissa Jones Utility Billing Clerk 



CITY OF CANEY 
CITY COUNCIL  

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 15, 2025 

 
necessary. He asked if the consultant that compiled the City’s budget 
looked at cutting any services as opposed to increasing taxes. Mayor 
Elliot responded that he was unsure of that answer. He expressed a 
desire to cut services that used to be necessary but no longer were. 
Mayor Elliot asked if he had any suggestions. The citizen expressed that 
we can’t keep growing unless more people come here, but if the taxes go 
up nobody will come here. Council Member Burch stated that the Council 
all lives here and feels this 10 MIL increase too. She stated that part of the 
reason that it is necessary is because the City hasn’t raised the MIL levy 
in recent years and everything has gotten more expensive. She went on to 
say that if we looked at cutting things, it would be the Fire Department 
that took the hit this year since the Police Department took the hit last 
year. She stated that professionals were hired to bring out the City’s 
budget this year to provide accurate numbers for it and to increase 
transparency. Mayor Elliot stated that by selling the grocery store the 
budget will see savings next year. The citizen came back with all I just 
heard was cut first responders and that that is not where the cuts should 
come from. Mayor Elliot and Council Member Burch reiterated that they 
do not want to cut those services and noted that this crowd present was 
not here for the budget workshop and that that would have been the more 
productive time to voice these concerns.  
 
Another citizen asked how many Public Works employees there are. 
Mayor Elliot noted that there are seven staff members in the Public Works 
department. She said that she had an issue once and she saw four of 
them riding together in one crew. Mayor Elliot noted that he does not keep 
tabs on every individual and that they are grown adults. Council Member 
Burch noted that there were issues with the City’s fleet with vehicles 
breaking down but also stated that steps had been taken to mitigate 
those issues recently.  
 
MAYOR ELLIOT CLOSED THE PUBLIC HEARING AND A ROLL CALL 
VOTE WAS TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE THE CITY 
EXCEEDING THE RNR FOR FY 2026. RESULTS: 

 



CITY OF CANEY 
CITY COUNCIL  

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 15, 2025 

 

 

Mike Holeman Yes 
Kenith Butts Yes 
Elizabeth Burch Yes 
Becky Dye Yes 
Travis White Yes 

MOTION TO APPROVE CARRIES 5-0 

 

  B. A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED FY 2026 BUDGET. 

       1.  Mayor Elliot opened a public hearing for citizen input on the proposed FY 
2026 City budget. No citizens spoke on the item. 

MAYOR ELLIOT CLOSED THE PUBLIC HEARING AND A ROLL CALL VOTE 
WAS TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL TO ADOPT THE PROPOSED BUDGET 
FOR FY 2026. RESULTS: 

 

 

 

MOTION TO APPROVE CARRIES 5-0 

C. UPDATE: DISCUSSION – UPDATE FROM TOM FINGER REGARDING WATER   
LOANS - GRANTS SUBMISSION PACKET. 

1. Tom Finger came up and introduced himself and gave his qualifications in 
this sort of work. City Manager Sibley provided handouts in the agenda 
packets. A loan application was considered about a month ago to keep the 
project as affordable as possible and requested that the public hearing be 
opened. 

D. A MOTION WAS MADE BY COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE AND SECONDED BY 
COUNCIL MEMBER BURCH TO OPEN A PUBLIC HEARING FOR CANEY, KS 
REGARDING A PROPOSED LOAN IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,090,000 
(“THE LOAN”) TO BE TAKEN BY THE CITY FROM THE KANSAS  

 

Mike Holman Yes 
Kenith Butts Yes 
Elizabeth Burch Yes 
Becky Dye Yes 
Travis White Yes 



CITY OF CANEY 
CITY COUNCIL  

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 15, 2025 

 

PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY LOAN FUND (“THE FUND”) ADMINISTERED BY 
THE KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT (“KDHE”) 
PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 65-163C ET SEQ. 

MOTION CARRIES 5-0 

Phase I, the supply line from Coffeyville, is first on the agenda and what is 
being looked at to address the challenges with the water supply and so forth. 
The City has received a CDBG grant in the amount of $1 million which is 
currently pending. He mentioned that KDHE has a funding component and 
has been in conversation with City Manager Sibley and the engineers. The 
proposal being prepared for KDHE and presentation to the Council a 50% 
forgiveness component to it. Combining these funding sources could provide 
enough funding to cover the entire cost of the supply line project. 

The engineers have suggested another funding source from the Kansas Water 
Office (“KWO”) being a construction grant. Applications for the KDHE and 
KWO grant are both due in the next two-four weeks. Tom reassured the 
Council that these applications do not commit the City to anything but just 
keeps Caney in consideration. Should one or both be awarded to the City, it 
would be brough in front of the Council for consideration. Tom reiterated that 
both the KDHE loan and KWO grant were very competitive, giving the 
example that last year there may have been $300 million in applications and 
only $30-$40 million to award with. Tom felt good about Caney’s prospects. 
Both the KWO grant and KDHE loan would address funding for the supply line 
from Coffeyville, i.e. Phase I. 

Both phases are being looked at in conjunction with each other, Phase II is 
just more stable and poses less challenges. This led Phase I to take the lead 
and there were more external funding sources available for it as well. Phase II 
is the in-town distribution and storage improvements. That portion of the 
project is more costly than the supply line and many agencies are facing 
funding shortfalls and/or staff reductions making funding harder. The City of 
Caney was prioritized in replacing service lines in the City, replacing service 
lines to the homes from the meters.  

Phase II has funding sources available from both the KDHE funding source 
and KWO. The KDHE loan is for $2.09 million with 50% of that being  



CITY OF CANEY 
CITY COUNCIL  

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 15, 2025 

 

forgivable. The second KWO grant is for $1 million and is a technical 
assistance grant, i.e. used for engineering and surveying, the prep work for 
the project. If Caney is selected for the grant, it will improve the readiness of 
the project which would in turn improve the City’s odds of receiving other 
funding assistance. It would also get the design work completed. City 
Manager Sibley explained that a few weeks back the Council had discussed 
pulling a few items from these projects for consideration for this loan: the 
large booster station, the Caney Heights booster station, and one being the 
technical assistance required for the chlorinator to get their funding 
considered under this grant. Tom Finger stated that they have awarded both 
grants from the KWO to the same community in the same year in the past 
and given the challenges that Caney has faced. He believed that attempting 
to obtain more funding from as many sources as possible improved our odds 
due to it showing that we are attempting to bypass burdening our citizens 
with this funding. 

Tom stated that a final funding source is from the USDA. Tom noted that the 
agency is very shorthanded, in Kansas especially. He is hopeful that next year 
will have more opportunities there but noted that they will want to know the 
whole picture further making these KWO and KDHE loans more pressing.  

A reporter with the Chronicle clarified that Tom was not a banker and was 
with a non-profit. Tom reiterated that they have no hand in the money but just 
facilitate assistance in rural communities to obtain external funding. The 
reporter asked if he had any details about the grants/loans. Tom said the 
grants are grants and don’t have any interest rates or anything like that. The 
KDHE loan is a forgivable loan so at least half of it can be forgiven. City 
Manager Sibley reiterated that we are just applying and were not accepting 
any loans at this time. The time frame for getting the word back on if we are a 
recipient or not is Spring – March/April. The reporter commented on the 
Phases stating that the situation is unique and that Officials in Coffeyville 
have said that they will not ‘turn on’ the water source until Caney fixes its 
internal distribution. Mayor Elliot clarified that the priorities are where we can 
secure funding first and explained that the water loss by the distribution 
system in town is not currently thought to be as bad of shape as it was 
previously. He also stated that he expects when the next loss study is  



CITY OF CANEY 
CITY COUNCIL  

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 15, 2025 

 

completed, he expects the water loss to continue to be lessened. City 
Manager Sibley explained that many of the grants are geared towards 
regionalization and local distribution and both phases fall in that scope. 

A citizen requested an update for how shovel ready the project was. City 
Manager Sibley stated that we have gotten approval everywhere the line 
would pass between Caney and Coffeyville. The City has hundreds of pages 
of assessments and studies going back the past two years and it is believed 
to be very close to, if not already shovel ready. The components removed to 
make ready for grant funding are more expensive components. Past attempts 
at these grants attempted to get full funding for the projects, in the price 
range of $6-$7 million when the cap for total spending was $8 across 
municipalities and the feedback was that giving you the grant in that amount 
doesn’t allow assistance to other communities. The full cost for Phase I is 
around $7.8 million and Phase II is around $24 million.  

E. A MOTION TO EXIT PUBLIC HEARING FOR CANEY, KS REGARDING A 
PROPOSED LOAN IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,090,000 (“THE LOAN”) TO 
BE TAKEN BY THE CITY FROM THE KANSAS PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY LOAN FUND 
(“THE FUND”) ADMINISTERED BY KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND 
ENVIRONOMENT (“KDHE”) PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 65-163C ET SEQ 

MOTION BY COUNCIL MEMBER DYE, SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE. 

MOTION CARRIES 

F. A MOTION TO APPROVE SUBMISSION OF APPLICATION FOR CANEY, KS, 
REGARDING A PROPOSED LOAN IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,090,000 
(“THE LOAN”) TO BE TAKEN BY THE CITY FROM THE KANSAS PUBLIC WATER 
SUPPLY LOAN FUND (“THE FUND”) ADMINISTERED BY KANSAS DEPARTMENT 
OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONOMENT (“KDHE”) PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 65-163C ET 
SEQ 

MOTION BY COUNCIL MEMBER HOLEMAN, SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER 
WHITE. 

MOTION CARRIES 

G. MOTION TO APPROVE KDHE RESOLUTION 2025-14. 



CITY OF CANEY 
CITY COUNCIL  

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 15, 2025 

 

MOTION BY COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE, SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER 
HOLEMAN. 

MOTION CARRIES 

H. MOTION BY COUNCIL MEMBER BURCH TO APPROVE SUBMISSION OF USDA, 
RD FUNDING APPLICATION, SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE. 

MOTION CARRIES 

I. MOTION BY COUNCIL MEMBER DYE TO ENTER EXECUTIVE SESSION TO 
DISCUSS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION RELATING TO MATTERS OF FINANCE, 
ACCORDING TO K.S.A 75-4319 (1) FOR 10 MINUTES AT 7:22 PM TO INCLUDE THE 
CITY COUNCIL, MAYOR, CITY ADMINISTRATOR, AND CITY CLERK, SECONDED 
BY COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE 
MOTION CARRIES 

MOTION BY COUNCIL MEMBER BURCH TO EXIT EXECUTIVE SESSION AND 
RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION AT 7:31PM. 

MOTION CARRIES 

J. MOTION BY COUNCIL MEMBER BURCH TO APPROVE RESOLUITION 2025-15 TO 
SELL THE CITY OWNED GROCERY STORE. “CANEY GROCERY’ VIA ROLL CALL 
VOTE, SECONDED BY COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE. RESULTS: 

 

 

 

 MOTION CARRIES 5-0 

The reporter requested information on the deal, Mayor Elliot state that he 
reached out to the man that bought the grocery store in Sedan and asked if 
he wanted to take over the grocery store here in Caney. He was excited to 
accept. The deal was $300,000 with $80,000 down to be paid off in two years 
with an interest of 4.5%. The new owner is confident that he will be able to 
make the store thrive. When the store needs money which it has frequently, it 

Mike Holman Yes 
Kenith Butts Yes 
Elizabeth Burch Yes 
Becky Dye Yes 
Travis White Yes 



CITY OF CANEY 
CITY COUNCIL  

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 15, 2025 

got taken from water. The Mayor again encouraged participation at the 
workshops. 

 

6. MOTION TO ADJOURN AT 8:07 PM BY COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE, SECONDED BY 
COUNCIL MEMBER HOLEMAN 

MOTION CARRIES. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 















































CITY OF CANEY 

UNSAFE OR DANGEROUS STRUCTURE CHECKLIST 
              

             Official Procedure for Condemnation and Demolition 

1. Initial Determination 

 ☐ Building Inspector completes written statement declaring a structure "unsafe 

or dangerous." 

 ☐ Specific reasons for determination included. 

 ☐ Statement submitted to the City Clerk. 

 ☐ (Recommended) Use standardized form. 

2. First Resolution by Governing Body 

 ☐ Matter presented at public City Commission meeting. 

 ☐ City Commission adopts resolution setting time and place of hearing. 

(Schedule hearing at least 30 days after date of last publication [two consecutive 

weeks] in the official city newspaper) 

 ☐ Resolution includes notice to owner, agent, lien holders, and occupant. 

3. First Publication 

 ☐ Publish resolution once per week for two consecutive weeks in the official city 

newspaper. 

4. Hearing Date 

 ☐ Schedule hearing at least 30 days after date of last publication in the official 

city newspaper. 

5. First Required Mailing 

 ☐ Within 3 days of first publication, send resolution via certified mail (deliver to 

addressee only) to: 

     ☐ Each Owner 

     ☐ Each Agent 

     ☐ Each Lien Holder 

     ☐ Each Occupant 

 ☐ (Recommended) Also send via first-class mail. 

 ☐ Maintain mail log: recipient, method, and date sent. 



6. Hearing 

 ☐ Building Inspector presents findings. 

 ☐ Any notified party may speak in objection or support. 

7. Condemnation – Second Resolution 

 ☐ City Commission adopts resolution: 

     ☐ Declares structure unsafe or dangerous 

     ☐ Orders structure to be repaired or demolished 

     ☐ Sets deadline (typically 30 days) to begin work 

     ☐ Authorizes City to act if owner fails to comply 

8. Second Publication and Mailing 

 ☐ Publish second resolution once in the official city newspaper. 

 ☐ Mail resolution (certified and optional first-class) to all parties listed in Step 5. 

9. Follow City Policy 

 ☐ Allow up to nine months for the owner to complete repair or demolition. 

10. Monitoring 

 ☐ Building Inspector monitors compliance. 

 ☐ If necessary, bring matter back to City Commission. 

 ☐ (Recommended) Notify all parties of this meeting via first-class mail. 

11. Notice of Intent to Demolish (Optional) 

 ☐ Send notice by first-class mail before demolition approval meeting. 

12. Demolition Procedure 

 ☐ City Commission authorizes demolition by motion. 

 ☐ No additional resolution or publication required. 

13. Optional Final Mailing 

 ☐ Notify all parties of authorized demolition by first-class mail. 

14. Bids 

 ☐ Solicit bids for demolition. 

 ☐ City Commission awards to lowest qualified bidder. 

15. Assessing Costs 

 ☐ City Clerk sends restricted mail to owner stating: 

     ☐ Total cost incurred 



     ☐ 30-day payment deadline 

     ☐ Unpaid balance will result in lien and tax assessment 













































 

 

Formal Letter: Notice of Intent to Demolish 

City of Caney, Kansas 
100 W. 4th Ave Caney, KS 67333 
Phone: 620-879-2772 
 
DATE: September 17, 2025 
TO: Tod S. & Leslie L. Baker 
RE: Condemnation/Demolition Hearing – 203 N. State, Caney, KS 67333  
 
Dear Mr. and Mrs. Baker, 
 
This letter serves as official notification that the property located at 203 N. State, Caney, 
Kansas 67333 is subject to condemnation proceedings under Article 4 of the City of 
Caney Code (available at caneyks.citycode.net). On 07/07/2025, the City of Caney Council 
voted for a resolution to proceed with Condemnation Hearing on the above property. 

Following an inspection conducted on June 19, 2025, by Code Enforcement Officer Nigel 
Flenar, the structure was deemed Dangerous or Unsafe for the following reasons: 

 

•  Defects increasing hazards of fire, accident, or other calamities 

•  Dilapidation 

•  Disrepair 

•  Structural defects 

•  Uncleanliness 

•  Unsightly appearance constituting a blight to adjacent properties and the 
community 

•  Violations of health, fire, building, or zoning requirements 

https://caneyks.citycode.net/index.html#!codeOfTheCityOfCaneyKansas


 

 
 

Code Enforcement Officer, Nigel Flenar has continued monitoring the property since the 
proceedings and noted that no changes have been made to date to rectify the conditions. 
An Intent to Demolish/Condemnation Hearing is scheduled for: 

Date: September 22, 2025 
Time: 6:30 PM 
Location: Caney City Hall, 100 W. 4th Ave, Caney, KS 67333 

Your attendance or representation is required. Should you fail to participate, the City of 
Caney will proceed with the condemnation/demolition process as documented. 

If you have any questions or wish to discuss this matter, please contact City Hall at (620)  

879-2772 

Sincerely, 

 

Adam Lanter 
City Clerk 





ORDINANCE NO. 25-17 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

CANEY, KANSAS; ADDING ARTICLE 6, SECTIONS 1 THROUGH 8 DEALING WITH 

TOWING AND TOWING COMPANIES. 

 

BE IT, THEREFOR, ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF CANEY, 

KANSAS: 

 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. That chapter 6 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Caney, 

Kansas is hereby amended to add the following Article 6, sections 1 through 9, as follows: 

 

ARTICLE 6. TOWING AND TOWING COMPANIES 

 

Section 1.  Purpose.  The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish requirements for the licensing, 

operation, equipment, insurance, and conduct of tow service providers operating within the City 

of Caney, and to set forth the procedures governing the Police Department’s rotation tow list. 

 

Section 2.  Licensing, Approval, and Agreements 

 

a. No person shall operate a tow service provider within the City without first obtaining a 

City-issued Tow Operator’s License. 

b. City of Caney Business License Form must be completed and a $25 Business Fee paid. 

c. Annual renewal requires: 

1. $25 renewal fee, 

2. Updated proof of insurance, and 

3. Renewal of the Tow Service Provider Agreement. 

d. Providers must be approved by the Chief of Police or designee prior to placement on the 

Police Department’s rotation list. 

e. Providers must execute and maintain a Tow Service Provider Authorization & 

Indemnification Agreement with the City. 

 

Section 3.  Business Operations 

 

a. Business offices must be open to the public: 

b. Business signage must display the company name and phone number in a conspicuous 

exterior location.  

c. Tow services must be available 24 hours per day, seven (7) days per week. 

d. Storage Facilities: 



1. Must be properly zoned and within city limits, or within five (5) miles of city limits. 

2. Outdoor storage must be fenced with a minimum 6-foot chain link fence. 

3. Secure indoor storage must be available for stolen property and valuable contents. 

e. Tow companies must tow abandoned vehicles in proportion to police tow requests. 

f. At accident scenes, tow companies shall clean up debris (glass, parts, fluids) and dispose 

of it properly at their place of business. 

 

Section 4.  Equipment Requirements 

 

Each tow service provider shall maintain at least one 16-ton capacity wrecker (Holmes 600 or 

equivalent) or greater. 

 

Section 5.  Insurance Requirements 

 

Proof of insurance must be submitted on an ACORD certificate form with the City named as an 

additional insured (except workers’ compensation). Minimum requirements: 

a. Commercial General Liability or Garage Liability: $500,000 CSL (bodily injury & 

property damage, including products/completed operations). 

b. Business Auto Liability: $500,000 CSL with coverage for: 

1. Any Auto, OR 

2. All Owned, Hired, and Non-Owned Autos, OR 

3. All Scheduled, Hired, and Non-Owned Autos. 

c. Garage Keepers Liability: $75,000 per location. 

d. On-Hook/Cargo Coverage: $50,000. 

e. Workers’ Compensation: Statutory + Employer’s Liability: 

1. $100,000 per accident (bodily injury by accident). 

2. $500,000 policy limit (bodily injury by disease). 

3. $100,000 per employee (bodily injury by disease). 

f. Insurance carrier must be licensed in Kansas, carry a Best’s rating of A- or better, Class X 

or higher, or be otherwise approved by the City. 

 

Section 6.  Personal Property in Towed Vehicles 

 

a. Tow providers may retain personal property until payment/arrangements are made. 

b. Mandatory release of: 

1. Medical supplies and essential personal items upon request (both codes). 

2. Release to owner/operator with proof of title, Insurance and registration unless 

directed otherwise by the Police Department. 

c. Providers are responsible for reasonable care of property. Unclaimed property shall be 

disposed of pursuant to local ordinance, including public auction. 



 

Section 7.  Rotation Tow List Procedures 

 

a. The Police Department shall maintain a list of authorized tow service providers. 

b. Rotation shall be followed unless: 

1. The vehicle owner requests a specific tow company; 

2. A special event or circumstance requires deviation; 

3. The next provider lacks appropriate equipment; or 

4. Response is delayed. 

c. Failure to promptly respond or accept a call forfeits that turn; the next provider shall be 

contacted. 

 

Section 8.  Suspension or Revocation   

 

The Chief of Police may suspend or revoke authorization with seven (7) days’ written notice for: 

a. Fraud or false statements in an application. 

b. Overcharging beyond the approved fee schedule. 

c. Failure to respond within twenty (20) minutes or failure to answer Police Department calls. 

d. Responding to scenes without being called and soliciting business. 

e. Any violation of towing rules, regulations, or City Code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Body of the City of Caney, Kansas this  ___  day of 

September, 2025 

 
 
___________________________ 
            Joshua D. Elliot, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 

 ___________________________ 
            Adam Lanter, City Clerk 

 
 



 
 


	9.22.2025 Agenda
	SEPTEMBER 15 MEETING MINUTES
	RH  Services
	Waste Connections
	Associated Wholesale Grocers 09.05
	Associated Wholesale Grocers 09.12
	Main Street Auto Invoices
	Unsafe Structure Checklist
	Kansas Statutes 12-1750-1756
	Documents for First Resolution Meeting 07072025
	203 N State st Demolition letter
	Reins Resignation Email
	Ordinance 2025-17

